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NCW Libraries 
RFQ – Public Opinion Research 

 

Addendum #1  |  12/12/2025 
 
Questions Received, with Answers: 
 

1. The RFP notes that the selected firm will meet weekly with a Library representative throughout the project. Are 
these weekly check-ins expected to be held in person, or are virtual meetings acceptable? 
Virtual is acceptable! 
 

2. NCW Libraries require surveys and polling to be offered in English and Spanish at a minimum. Are there any 
additional languages the consultant should include to ensure the broader community can participate fully? 
There are no additional languages that need to be included. 
 

3. For major project milestones (project kickoff meeting and the final presentation of findings): does the Library 
require these sessions to be conducted in person, or is a virtual format acceptable? 
Virtual is acceptable! 
 

4. If virtual format is acceptable, are there any specific meetings that are required to be conducted in person? 
No, the entire scope of work can be conducted virtually/remotely. 
 

5. Does the Library have any expectations or parameters for the sample design (e.g., minimal sample size, acceptable 
margin of error, demographic or geographic quotas, weighting, etc.), or should the proposing firm define the 
sampling plan? 
We would like the proposing firm to define the sampling plan. However, we would want that plan to ensure basic 
geographic (responses from all five counties) and demographic representation (responses from Hispanic/Latino 
population). 
 

6. Is a fixed firm fee structure acceptable? 
Yes. 
 

7. Regarding the $30,000 budget cap: If a reduced scope is required, what components does the Library require as a 
must? 
NCW Libraries’ expenses are outpacing revenues from property taxes, and the Board of Trustees will need to decide in 
2026 whether to pursue avenues to increase funding (a Levy Lid Li�t vote in a future year) or to make plans to decrease 
services. They would like this decision-making to be informed by local public opinion, with emphasis on understanding 
the value residents place on library services for themselves and/or their community. 
 

8.  Does the Library have an existing set of survey questions or templates, or should the contractor collaborate with the 
Library to develop the questionnaire from the ground up? 
The hired contractor would collaborate with the Library to develop the questionnaire. 
 

9. How does the Library define a “representative sample” of the service population? Is it based on demographics (age, 
gender, ethnicity), geography (county-level), or usage patterns? Should the final dataset be weighted to re�lect the 
population distribution across demographics (age, gender, ethnicity), geography (county-level), or usage patterns? 
We would like the proposing firm to define the sampling plan. However, we would want that plan to ensure basic 
geographic (responses from all five counties) and demographic representation (responses from Hispanic/Latino 
population). 
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10. What is the minimum completed sample for the survey results? 

We would like the proposing firm to define the sampling plan. 
 

11. Are there specific groups the Library considers “hard-to-reach” (e.g., rural residents, tribal residents, non-English 
speakers, seniors, low-income households)? Does the Library have any existing outreach channels or partnerships we 
can leverage to reach these groups? 
NCW Libraries has not conducted this type of community survey in the past and so has not defined any specific groups 
that are easier or harder to reach. However, it would be reasonable to assume that the audiences listed in the question, 
along with those individuals without reliable internet access (due to income or geography) will be harder to reach than 
others.  
 
The library does have existing marketing and outreach channels, and a wide variety of partnerships that can be 
leveraged to reach these groups. 
 

12. Will the Library provide any membership information to supplement the sample list for the starting survey and 
future surveys, or does the sample need to be created by the vendor?  
NCW Libraries will not provide any library cardholder data. However, we may be able to provide access to some library 
customers via our patron email newsletter. 
 
The Library’s goal is to reach a representative sample of all residents of the area, not just current library users or 
supporters, so we anticipate that the sample will likely need to be created in whole or in part by the vendor. 
 

13.  If the online survey is the primary survey mode, does the Library have any preferred online survey platform? 
No. 
 

14. Will the Library expect the contractor to host the online surveys in the future? 
No. 
 

15. Are there specific documentation or data formats required to ensure the research can be replicated in future years? 
No. 
 

16. On page 9, the RFQ states: ‘Any costs incurred by the respondents in preparing and submitting a response or making 
an oral presentation shall be the respondents’ sole responsibility.’ Could you clarify whether ‘oral presentation’ 
refers to an in-person or virtual presentation of the survey findings, or to a presentation during the proposal 
evaluation process? 
This section refers to the proposal evaluation process. The entire project, including proposal review and selection, and 
the resulting scope of work with the hired contractor, can be conducted remotely via virtual meetings and 
presentations. 
 

17. Does the library plan on getting IRB approval for this research or does a vendor need to get IRB approval if 
necessary? 
The vendor needs to determine if IRB approval is necessary. The Library will work closely with the vendor to get IRB 
approval if it is needed. 
 

18. Do you anticipate the vendor will need to obtain a Tribal research permit from the Confederated Tribes of the 
Colville Reservation? 
The vendor needs to determine if a Tribal research permit is needed. 
 

 
 
 


